IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ¢
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA

NEW ALBANY DIVISION  09SEPIT PH 2: 13
‘ ) . ?j””‘ ‘{ I B3 r N x":{"
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ) LA
' )
and )
n )
THE STATE OF INDIANA, )
e )
Plaintiffs, ) Civil Action No. _ -
) % . g
A ) &g@ 9'@?‘ 0 E
- ) " V125DFH ‘weg
- THE CITY OF JEFFERSONVILLE, )
INDIANA y
Defendant )
)
COMPLAINT

Thé United States of America, by authority of the Attorney General of the I.'Unjted States,
and a_cﬁng on behalf of the Administrator of the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(“U.S-. EPA”), and the State of Indiana (lthe “State”), by the authority of its Attorney Genel_'al and
"~ on behalf of the Indiana Department of Ep‘vironmental Management (“IDEM;’), allege as
follows: | |

| NATURE OF ACTION

1. This is a civil aciion'brought pursuant to .Section'309(b) and (d) of the Clean‘
Water Act (“CWA™), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b) and (d), for injunctive relief and for the assessment of
civil pehalties against Defendant City of Jeffersonville, Indiana (“Jeffersonville” or .“Defendar.it”)
for unauthorizéd and illegal discharges of pollutants and other violations of Section 301(a) of the -
CWA,33U.S.C. § 1311(a), and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System |

'(“NPDES”) permit that has been issued to it, For many ye'ars, the Defendant has di.scharged '




sewage and other harmful bollutants from the sewage collection system that is part of its Publicly

Owned Treatment Works (“POTW?™) into naﬁigable waters flowing through and around the City
of Jeffersonville, including but not limited to the Ohio River and Cane Run Creek. These
discharges are caused by the lPOTW’s Jack of capacity to coﬁvey wastewaters through its
‘ cdllectio;j.“_ﬁnggem and fully treat those we‘ls_’t\e_wggg;‘s”a_t its Waste Water Treatment Plant
t“WWTP”) in its scrvicé area, and by poor maintenance and operation of the POTW. Asa
result, as further alleged below, the Defendant violated several terms and conditions of tﬁe
NPDES permits that have been issued to it, has violated Section 301(a) of the CWA, and has
violated Indiana law. |

-WMSD.ICTION, VENUE, AUTHORITY AND NOTICE.

7 2. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pursuant to
Section 309(b) and (d) of the CWA, 33 U.8.C. § 1319(b) and (d) and QS'U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1345
and 1355. T:he State isra party to this action pursuant to Section 309(e) of the CWA, 33 U.s.C.
§ 1319(6), and 28 U.S.C. § 1367@). . | |

3. This Court has suppleﬁlenjcal jurisdiction over the State law claims alleged herein
pursuant to 28 U-.S.C. § 1367(a) becaﬁse the_St;;jce‘ _cil:'ahns are related to thie federal claims and
form part of the same case or controversy. |

4. Venue is proper in the Southern District of Indiana pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
-‘ § 1391(c), .a.nd Section 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b), because it is the judicial aistrict
- where Defendaﬁt is doing businessrand where the alleged violations occurfed. Venue in this -
Di_strict is also proper under 28 U.S.C. § 1367(a).

3. "As a signatory to. this Cqmplainfg, the State hés actual notice of the commencement

of this action in accordance with Section 309tb) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(b).




6. The Attorney General of the United States is authorized to appear and represent
the United States in this action pursuant to Section 506 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1366, and 28
U.S.C. §§ 516 and 519. |

7. The Ihdiana Attorney General is authorized to appear and represent the State in
this action pursuant to Ind. Code §§ 4-6-3-2(a), 13-30-4-1 and 13-14-2-6.

DEFENDANT

8. Defendant City of Jeffersonville o@s' and operates a POT'W which conéists ofa
Class IV primary wastewater treatmént facility and wastewater collection .systems. The
Jeffersonville PO_TW serves the City of J effersonville,‘lndiana.
| 9. The Cify of Jeffersonville is a “person” within the rﬁeaning of Section 502(5) of
the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), and ;Téffersonville is a “municipality” within the meﬁning of
~ Section 502(4) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(4).
" | JOINDE:R OF A NECESSARY PARTY
10.  Section 309(e) of the CWA reqﬁ_ires that a State be joined as a party when the _
Uhi-_ted States sues a municipality of the State. T‘hé State of Indiana is a co—El_aintiff, along with
the United States, in this action. IDEM ig authorized to im'plemcnf the CWA W_ithi_n the State of
Indiana. Ind. Code § 13-13-5-1(1). Indiana regulations iﬁcorporaté the CWA by reference.
327 IAC 5-2-1.5(1). | |

FEDERAL AND STATE STATUTES AND REGULATIONS |

1. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U:S.C. § 1311(a}, and Ind. Code § 13-30-2-1

prohibit thé discharge of any pollutants by any person except, inter alia, in compliance with an

NPDES permit issued by U.S. EPA or an authorized state pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA,
13US.C.§1342.




| 12. Section 502(12) of the CWA defines “diseherge of a pollutant” to mean, among
other things, “any addition of any pollutant to navigable waters from any point source.”
33 U.S.C. § 1362(12). See also 327TAC 5-1.5-11 (similarly defining “discharge of a pollutant™).
13. Section 502(7) of the CWA deﬁnes navigable waters to be “the waters of the
United States, mcludmg the territorial seas.” 33 U.S.C. § 1362('?2. 'U.S.. EPA regulations‘
promulgated pursuant to the CWA deﬁne the term “waters of the United States” to include,
among other things: 1) all waters which are currently used, were used 1n the past, or may be
susceptible to use in interstate or foreign commerce, including all waters which are subject to the |
ebb and flow of the tide; 2) all interstate waters; 3) all other waters s_uch as intrastate lakes, rivers
. and streams (mcludmg 1nterm1tter1t streams}, the use, degradatien, or destruction of which would
affect or could affect 111terstate or forelgn commerce; 4) tributaries of waters of. the United States;
and 5) oertain wetlands (including wetlands adjacent to these Waters). 40 CFR. § 1222,

14. Indrana law defines “waters of the state” o include- “the accumulatlons of water,

) surface and underground natural and artificial, public and prlvate or ..a part of the
accumulatrons of Water . that are wholly or partially W1th1n ﬂow through or- border upon
Indlana ” Ind Code § 13-11-2-265. _

15, Section 502(6) of the CWA and Indiana reguletio_nksdeﬁne “pollutant” to inelude,
inter .alz‘a,_ sewage. 33U .S;CV. § 1362(6); 327 IAC 5-1.5-41. _ |

16.-  The term ?r‘facilitsr” is defined in the regulations as “any NPDES ‘point source’ or
any other facility . . . (including land or appurtenances thereto) that is subject to regulation urlder
the NPDES program.” 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. _

17.  The term-“point source” is defined in Section 50_2(1:4) of _the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1362(14), as “any disoemible, confined and discrete convey'aﬁge, including but not limited to




any pip_e, ditch, channel, tunnel ... from which pollutants are or may be discharged.” See also
327 IAC 5-1.5-40. ‘

18.  Section 402(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides that U.S. EPA may
issue to “Ioersons” NPDES permits that authorize the discharge of any pollutaint t0 navigable
waters, but only in compliance with Section 301 of the CWA, 33U.8.C. § 13_1 1, and snch terms
and conditions as U..S. EPA determines are necessary to catry out the provisions of the CWA.
See also 327 IAC 5-2-2.

19,  Section 402(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(b), provides that a State may
establish and a_dminister its own permit program, and, after U.S. EPA authorizes the State’s
program, may;.issue NP.DES permits. At all-“ti_mes relevant to this complaint, IDEM has been

authorized by U.S. EPA to administer an NPDES permit pro gram for regulating discharges of

- pollutants into navigable waters within itsjurisdiction 40 Fed, Reg 4033 (Jan. 27, 1975).

IDEM adm1n1sters the NPDES perm1tt1ng program m Ind1ana pursuant to Ind Code § 13 “13-5-

1(1) and rnamtams concurrent enforcement authority Wlth U.S EPA over NPDES perm1ts in

.;In;c_‘h._.anao-_- 327 IAC 5-2-2 prohibits the discharge Of‘Peglluta%}tﬁ to “waters of the state™except as

. authorlzed by a ﬂiily issued NPDES permit.

20. Sectlon 309(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S. C § 1319(b) authorlzes US. EPA to

- commence a civil action for appropriate relief, 1nclud1ng a permanent or ternporary 1nJunet10n

When any person violates, among other th1ngs, Sectlon 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, or
v1olates any of the terms or conditions of an NPDES permlt Indiana’s water pollu‘uon control
laws may be enforced under Ind. Code §8 13-30-1-1,- 13—30-3 or 13-14-1.—-12_.

21.  Section309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13 19(d) prov1des that any person who
v1olates among other things, Section 301 of the CWA 33 U S C. § 1311 or who v1olates any

condition or limitation of an NPDES petmit issued pursuant to Section 402 of the CWA4, 33




U.S.C. § 1342, shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $25,000 per day of violation,.with'
each day in Which a violation occurs constituting a separate violation.
22, Pursuantto fhe Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990 (28
U.S.C. § 2461 note: Pub. L. 101-410, enacted October 5, 1990; 104 Stat.- 890), as amended by
“the Debt Collection Improvements Act of 1996 (31 U.S.C. § 3701 note; Pub. L. 104-134, enacted
‘ April 26, 1996; 110 Stat. 1321), U.S. EPA promulgated the Civil Monetary Penalty Inﬂation '
Adjustment Rulé. Under that rule, U.S. EPA may seek civil penaltiés of up to $27.,500 per day
for each violation occurring from January 31, 1997 through March 15, 2004, $32,500 per day for
gach violatidn occurring from March 16, 2004 through January 12, 2009, and $377,500 per day
for each violation occurring after lJla.nuary 12, 2009. See 61 Fed. Reg. 69,364 .(Dec. 31, 1996); 69
Fed. Reg. 7,121 (Feb. 13, 2004}; 73 Fed. Reg. 75,345 (Dec. 11, 2008). ‘

23, 327 1TAC 5-2-20 and Ind. Code §§ 13-30-4-1 and 13-14-2-6 authorize thé State to
cémmence a civil action for 'appropﬁate'relief to address violations of Title 327 of the Indiana
Administrative Code, Article 5, including injunctive relief and civil penalties. ‘Such felief may;
incllu'd_e a iaerrnanent or temporary inj-unq%t_ion, as well as a civil penalty of up to $25,0’00 per day
for each violation. |

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

24.  Defendant owns and operates a “treatment works” as that teﬁn is defined in CWA

Section 212(2), 33 U.S.C..'§1292(2), and a “pu‘t')IiCIy owned treatment worké.” as that tefm is
defined in U.S. EPA reéulationg implementing the CWA, 40 CF.R. § 122.2 (chss-referencing
the definition at 40 C.F.R, § 403.3). Defendant’s POTW consists of one WWTP (tﬁe

J effersonvﬂle WWTP) and the sewage collection systems for that plant.




25. Defendant’s POTW collects, conveys, treats and disposes of sanitary sewage from
the City of Jeffersonville, an area eor/ering approximately 13 square miles, with a service
population of approximately 29,000 people. . 7

26. The Jeffersonville WWTP has an average design flow of 6.0 million gallons per
day (“MGD”), and an average peak desrgn flow of up to 25.0 MGD The mass lrmrts for
Carbonaceous Blochemloal Oxygen Demand (“CBODs™) and Total Suspended Solids (“TSS”) in
its NPDES permlt for that plant are based on that average peak design flow.

27.  Defendant bas one collection system that consists of approximately 9 miles of
pipe that convey sewage and other pollutants to the WWTP. The eollection eystem includes beth
“combined sewers” l(i.e., the pipes carry botlr wasterwater and stormwater in the sarrre pipe) and
“separate sewers” (i.e., there are two sets of pipes, one for wastewater and the other for

stormwater).

28.  Most of the “combined” portion of the collection system is in older areas of the

City of Jeffersonvrlle, and the “separate” portion of the system is in the newer area of the C1ty
of Je-ffersonvrlle s total sewered area, approximately 15% (1,350 aeres) 1_s._§e:ryed.by eem’erned
SEWErS.

29. The WasteWarer that Defendant conveys and/or stores in its eollecﬁron_ s‘yste'_rn,‘ and
the wastewater that Defendant treats and disposes ef at its WWTP, corrta.ins ;‘pellutants” as that
term is defined in Section 502(6) of the CWA, 33 U. S C.§ 1362(6) and 327 IAC 5-1.5-41.

30. Onor about May 13, 1999, IDEM issued NPDES Permit No IN00233 02 to
Defendant and Enviro_nmental Marragement Corporation for the Jeffersonville WWTP under the
authority of Section 402 of the CWA,33US.C. § 1342, and Ind. Code § 1'3-13‘-5-:1(1). IDEM
rerrewed the permit on OetoIaer 30, 2006, and amenderi it on March 13, 2Q09. NPDES Permit

“No, IN0023302 is hereinafter referred to as the “NPDES Permit.”




31.  The NPDES penoit that Defendaot holds for its WWTP authorizes the discharge
of efﬂu,ent'only from the specific outfalls identified in the permit and only ip compliance with
tile conditions and limitatjions set forth in the permit.

32, PartLA.of Attachment A of Defendant’s 1999 NPDES permit authorized
discharges from sixteen (16) designated Combined Sewer Ove‘r‘rﬂow (ffCSO”) outfalls duriog wet
weather, subject to the requirements and limitations of the permit. | |

33. | Part I.A. of Attachment A of Defendant’s 2006 NPDES permit authorized
diacharges from thirteen (13) designated CSO outfalls during wet weather, subject to the
,_requirements and limitations of the perrnit.

34, PartLA. ofjAuagmnent A of Defendant’s 1999 N_PDES permit and Part B, of
Attachroent Aof Defeodant;s 2006 NPDES permit provide, among other things, that the
discharge from any and all ACSO outfalls shall not cause receiving waters to contaio substances,

materlals, ﬂoatmg debr1s or other pollutants that: 1) W111 settle to form putrescent or othervwse

objectionable deposzts, 2) are in amounts sufficient to be un31ght1y -or deleterlous or 3) produce
coler, odor, or other conditions in such a degree as to create a.nuis nice.

35. Attaeh_rrfeht Bto the 2006 NPDES permit proﬁi@_gi‘t's Z\iefﬂgws ffom the-~s_aoitary

-sewer system or a sanitary'ijortioh of a combined system from d cha glng at any t1me

36.  Untreated sewage oonteuns organic matter, bactef;a aod other potent1a1 pathogena
which afe or may be harmful to human health and the env1ronment 1nc1ud1ng but not 11m1ted to
aquatic life. The pathogens in raw sewage can cause a number of dlseases in humans including
but not limited to enterlc,diseases such as gastroententls dysen‘tery,:.a'nd ohole'ra

37. Defendant’s WWTP outfalls, Sanitary Sewer Outfalls and CSO outfalls are
located on the Ohio Rlver M111 Creek and Cane Run Creek The Ohl() Rwer is nav1gable—m—

fact. On information and belief, Mill Creek in the area that ha_‘s"‘rr_e_oelvedJ effersonvﬂles




discharges is aperennial tributary that flows into the Ohio River. On information and belief,

" Cane Run Creek in the area that has received Jeffe_rsonville’s discharges is a perennial tributary

~ that flows into the Ohio River. Mill Creck, Cane Run Creek and the Ohio River are each

"navigable waters"” within the meaning of Section 502(7) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7) and

~each is a "water of the state" of Indiana as defined in Ind. Code § 13-11-2-265.

38.  The State of Indiana, under 327 IAC 2-1-3(a)(1), has designated the Indiana
portions of the Ohioc Riverasa “fult body contact recreation” vtzater body. Indiana regulations
specify the water quality criteria that full body contact recreation waters must meet, including a
requirement that these waters be free from “substances, materials, {and] floating debris™ that are
=l‘unsightly or deleterious,” and a requirement that futl body contact recreation waters contain no
more than 235 E.coli bacteria colonies per 160 milliliters of water in any one sample taken in a

30 day perlod 327 IAC 2-1-6(a) and (d).

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Combmed Sewer Overﬂows Prohlblted Wet Weather Dlscharges)
39, Paragraphs 1 through 38 are realleged and 1nc0rporated herern by reference

40'. ~ ' On numerous occasmns in the past the Defendant dlseharged poIIutants frorn

_desrgnated CSO outfalls specrﬁed in Attachrnents A to Defendant’s 1999 NPDES permrt and

- 2006 NPDES permrt in amounts and quality that v1olated the terms and condltlons of the then—

apphcable permrt. The permit terms violated 1nc1ude Part I A of Attachment A to the 1999
NPDES perm1t and Part I.B. of Attachment Ato the 2006 NPDES permlt Wthh both pr0v1de
inter alza that the dlscharge from any and all CSO outfalls shall not cause receiving Waters to
contam substances materials, floating debris or other pollutants that, arnong other things: 1) will

settle to. forrn putrescent or otherwise obj ectionable deposﬂs 2) are in amounts Sufﬁclent to be




unsightly or deleterious; or 3) produce color, odor, or other conditions in such a degree asto
ereate a nuisance.

41. Eech of those discharges from designated CSO outfalls that violated the terms and
conditions of Defendant’s 1999 and 2006 NPDES permits constitutes a separate violation of -
| Sect1on 301(a) of the CWA,33US.C. § 131 l(a) for each dlscharge on each day from each CSO

‘ outfall

42. . Each such discharge on each day constitutes a separate Vlolatlon of Ind. Code
§13 30-2-1 and 327 IAC 5-2-2.
43.  Unless enjoined by the Court, the Defendant will continue to discharge pollutants
from CSO outfalls in violation of Section 301 of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1311.
44.  Unless enjoined by the Court, the Defendant will continue to discharge pollutants
from CSO-outfalls in violation of Ind. Code § 13-30-2-1 and 327 IAC 5;2-2.
| 45, For each vicolation referred to in this claim, Defendant is subJ ect to ClVﬂ penaltles

in the amounts as set forth in paragraphs 22-23 supra

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF

{(Overflows from the Saﬂ-itﬁljy A r Collection System - Prohibitéd --D'isi'éh'al‘ges).

46.  Paragraphs 1 through '_;are re—alleged and 1ncorporated he m-by reference

47.  On numerous occasrons '111 the past, Defendant has dlschargeo sewage and other
pollutants from point sources (mcludmg des1gned overflow points and pomts not des1gned to
overﬂow) in the sanitary sewer system and/or sanitary portions of the comblned sewer system
for the POTW, and, on information and belief, these sewage discharges reached nawgabl_e waters

and/or “waters of the state,” includr__ng, but not limited to, Mill Creek.

10




48. - Each such discharge of pollutants from Defendant’s sanitary sewers to navigable
waters on each day constltutes a separate violation of Attachment B to the 2006 NPDES permit
and is a separate V1olat1on of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

49, Each such discharge of pollutants from Defendanlt’s sanitary sewers to “waters of
‘the state” on each day is a separate violation of Ind. Code § 13-30-2-1 and 327‘IA,C 5‘~2'-“.2H.

50.  Unless enjoined by an order of the Court, Defendant will continue to discharge
pollutants from Defendant’s sanitary sewers to navigable waters in violation of the Sanitary
Sewer Overflow prohibition in Attachment B of the 2006 NPDES permit, in violation of Section
301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

51. Unless enjoineo‘by an order of the Court, Defendant will continue to Cli‘scharge
pollutants from Defendant’s sanitary sewers to “waters of the state” in violation of the Sanitary
Sewer Overﬂow prohibition in Attachment B of the 2006 NPDES permit, in v1olat1on of Ind.
Code§13 30-2- I and 327 IAC 5-2-2,

- 52.  For each violation referred to in this clanﬁ Defendant .1s subject to c1v1l o"l"alﬁes
in the amounts as set forth in paragraphs 22-23, supra.
THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF "
(Violation of Effluent Limitations) |
53. Paragraphs 1 through 38 are re-alleged and incorporated herein by reference
54, On numerous occastons in the past Defendant has dlscharged efﬂuent oontammg
pollutants in excess of efﬂuent limitations contained in the 1999 NPDBS perm1t and 2006 |

NPDES permit at Outfall 001 for dissolved oxygen, total suspended solids, E. co‘lz, ‘copper,- and

cyanide.

11




55. Each such discharge of pollutants from Outfall 001 on each day in excess of each
effluent limitation contained in the 1999 NPDES permit and the 2006 NPDES permit is a
separate violation of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

56.  Each such discharge of pollutants from Outfall 001 on cach day in excess of each

* effluent limitation contained in the 1999 NPDES permit and the 2006 NPDES permit is a

separate v101at10n of Ind. Code § 13 30- 2 1 and 327 IAC 5-2-2.

57. © Unless enjoined by an order of the Court, Defendant will continue to discﬁarge '
pollutants in excess of the effluent limitatibns contained in the. 2006 NPDES permit, in violation
of Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a).

58. Unless enjoined by an order of the Court, Defendant will continue to discharge
pollutants in excess of the‘ éfﬂuent limitations contained in the 2.006 NPDES permit, in violation
of Ind: Code § 13-30-2-1 and 327 IAC 5-2-2.

59. F.or each violation referred to in'this claim, Defend;a_.nt 15 sl;bj ect _‘;o igjunctiye

relief and civil penalties in the amounts as set forth in paragréﬁﬁ's 22423, Supm.

PRAVER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, the United States of America respectfully prays that this Court
provide the following relief: |

1. A permanent i_njﬁnction dirécting De'fendant-to take all steps necessary to come
into permanent and continuous compliance with all tefms and co_ndiﬁons of its NPDES permits
for the East Plant and West Plant, including but not limited to: |

a. the condltlons in Attachment Ato the NPDES perrmt prohlbltmg wet
weather discharges of pollutants except as authorized by the NPDES permlt

b. the permit’s p_l_‘Ohlbltlon of Samtary Sewer Overflows; and

12




c. the effluent limitations set forth in the 2006 NPDES permit;

2. A permanent or temporary injunction ordering the Def(;ndant to mitigate the past
environmental harm caused by its violations of the NPDES pénnit,. Section 301(a) of the CWA,
Ind. Code § 13-30-2-1, and 327 IAC 5-2-2;

3‘.“_ A judgment assessing civ_i__lr penalﬁtws j.against Defendant a{;d_in _faYpr‘ of the United
States, not to exceed $27,500 ﬁer day for elach violation of the CWA which occurred éfter

January 30, 1997 and on or before March 15, 2004, not to exceed $32,500 per day for each
violation of -t_he'C‘lWA Whiéh occurred after March 15, 2004 and on o.r before January 12, 2009,
- and not to exceed $37,500 per day for each violaﬁon of the CWA which occurred after January -
12, 2009; |

4, . Ajudgment assessing civil penalties against Defendént and in favor of the State,
not to exceed $25,000 per day for ea_éh violation of Ind. Code § 13-18-4-5 which occurred;

5.;7.; | Awardithe United Stétcs,of America and the :St'ate of Iﬁdia;}a their costs and

digbursements in this action; and

13




Dated:

Dated:

Grant such other relief as this Court deems appropriate.

7-le -09

14

- Trial Attorney

Respectfully subfnitted,

FOR THE UNITED STATES OF
AMERICA

A ctmg Assistant Attorney General

Environment and Natural Resources
Division '

* U.S. Department of Justice

0 (s

ANDREW C. HANSOJ [7

Environmental Enfi
Environment and N

Division ‘
U.S. Department of
P.O. Box 7611

Email: Andrew. hanrl f 2 @juisdol.gov




OF COUNRSEL:

JOHN TIELSCH
Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S.EPA Region V -
77 ‘W" st Jackson Blvd.

r'-Washmgton D.C. 20460
(202) 564-6139

TIMOTHY M. MORRISON

United States Attorhéy

' homas E Kleper '
Assistant United States Attomey
Southern District of Indiana

10 West Market Street, Suite 2100
Indianapolis, IN46204

Phone: (317) 226-6333
Facsimile: (317)226-5027
Emaﬂ Tom Kleper@usdo; gov
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GREGORY F. ZOELLER
Indiana Attorney General

Dated: ?- 2o 2.60‘% | <Lm /(/ /4,(246
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“SIERRA L. ALBERTS ﬁ\

Deputy Attorney General
Office of the Indiana Attorney General

302 West Washlngton Street

Indiana Government Center South, 5 Floor
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204

Phone: (317)232-5663

Facsimile: (317)232-7979

Email: Sierra. Alberts@ate. IN.gov




